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U K Insurance Limited 01179980

Strategic Report
For the year ended 31 December 2014

The Directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Activities and business review

Activity

The principal activity of U K Insurance Limited (“the Company”) continues to be the provision of general insurance.

The Company is a member of the Direct Line Group (“the Group”) headed by Direct Line Insurance Group plc ("DLIG”) of
which the Company is a subsidiary. The Group provides the Company with direction and access to all central resources
it needs and determines policies in all key areas such as finance, risk and human resources. For this reason, the
Directors believe that key performance indicators specific to the Company are not necessary or appropriate for an
understanding of the development, performance or position of the business. The annual report of DLIG reviews these

matters on a group basis. Copies can be obtained from Direct Line Group Secretariat, Churchill Court, Westmoreland
Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1DP, the Registrar of Companies or through the Group’s website at www.directlinegroup.com.

The Company is authorised and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (‘PRA") and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority (“FCA"). )

Review of the year
Business review

The Directors are satisfied with the Company's performance in the year. The Company will be guided by its ultimate
shareholder in seeking further opportunities for growth.

Financial performance
The Company's financial performance is presented in the statement of comprehensive income on page 7.

For the year 2014 net earned premium decreased by £155.5 million to £2,886.7 million, investment income increased by
£20.7 million to £216.9 million and other income decreased by £10.5 million to £100.4 million. After £450.6 million of prior
year releases, total net insurance claims decreased by £141.4 million to £1,756.9 million (2013: £1,898.3). Expenses
decreased by £85.7 million to £1,103.1 million. The profit for the year after tax was £335.7 million (2013: £261.0 million).

The overall net loss ratio decreased from 60% in 2013 to 59% in 2014. The reduction arose from an improvement in the
attritional loss ratio and higher prior-year reserve releases of £450.6 million as a percentage of net earned premium
(2013: £449.6 million). The combined operating ratio in the year decreased from 98% in 2013 to 96% in 2014. Included in
the 2014 ratio are one-off exceptional costs of £69.6 million (2013: £139.7 million). Excluding the one-off exceptional
costs the combined operating ratio in the year was 93% (2013: 93%).

An interim dividend of £228.0 million was paid during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: £43.0 million). The
directors recommend the payment of a final dividend £370.0 million (2013: £201.0 million).

At the end of the year, the statement of financial position reflected total assets of £9,515.6 million (2013: £10,006.4
million). Income generating assets are comprised primarily of the total assets as per the statement of financial position.
Total equity was £2,127.7 million (2013; £2,177.7 million).

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Company's risk management objectives are set out in note 3.

Apprgved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

John Reizenstein
Director

27" March 2015



U K Insurance Limited 01179980

Directors’ Report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has chosen, in accordance with section 414c(11) of the Companies Act 2006, and as noted in this .
Directors’ report, to include certain additional matters in its strategic report that would otherwise be required to be
disclosed in this Directors’ report.

Directors and secretary

The present Directors and secretary, who have served throughout the year except where noted below, are listed on page
1.

From 1 January 2014 to date the following changes have taken place:

Appointed Resigned
Directors
M Catton | 07 March 2014
S REC James 28 August 2014 .
Secretary
H M Tomlinson ‘ 27 March 2014
RC Clifton 27 March 2014

Going concern

The Directors, having a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Disclosure of information to auditor
Each person who was a director of the Company at the date of approval of this report confirms. that:

a) sofaras thé director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware;
and .

b) each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and shall be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act ‘
2006. .

Auditor

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and it is the intention of the directors to
reappoint them under the deemed appointment rules of section 487 of the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ indemnities

DLIG has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefits of the directors of the Company which remain
in force at the date of this report.



U K Insurance Limited : ' 01179980

Directors’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year and the directors have elected
to prepare them in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") as adopted by the European
Union. In preparing these financial statements, the directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs, issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs at the end of the year and the
profit or loss for the financial year of the Company. In preparing these financial statements, under International

" Accounting Standard 1, the directors are required to: '

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions of the entity's
financial position and performance; and

- make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board by:

John Reizenstein
Director

27" March 2015



U K Insurance Limited . ' 01179980

Independent auditor’s report to the members of U K Insurance Limited

We have audited the financial statements of U K Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 2014 which
comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the cash flow statement, the statement of changes
in equity and the related notes 1 to 34. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

y .
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
. (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. '

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
- European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards' Board (IASB).

In .our opinion the financial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the strategic feport and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

T e



UK Insuranée Limited 01179980

Independent audltor s report to the members of U K Insurance Limited (contlnued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report iﬁ respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you .
if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

.
! Qv N ¢ C...

David Rush

Senior Statutory Auditor - for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

27" March 2015



‘U K Insurance Limited 01179980
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014
2014 2013

Notes £m £m
Gross earned premium 4 3,144.2 3,281.1
Reinsurance premium ceded 4 (157.5) (138.9)
Net earned premium 4 2,986.7 3,142.2
Investment return 5 216.9 196.2
Instalment income 1004 1109
Other operating income ‘ 6 15.9 159
Total income ' . 3,319.9 3,465.2
Insurance claims 7 (1,812.6) (1,886.5)
Insurance claims recoverable from reinsurers 7 55.7 (11.8)
Net insurance claims 7 (1,756.9) (1,898.3)
Commission expenses 8 (357.8) ! (333.0)
Operating expenses 9 (745.3) (855.8)
Total expenses {1,103.1)  (1,188.8)
Operating profit 459.9 378.1
Finance costs 10 (37.8) (38.0)
Profit before tax 4221 340.1
Tax charge 11 (86.4) (79.1)
Profit for the year 335.7 261.0
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments 26 70.5 (103.5)
Less: realised net loss on AFS investments included in income statement 26 9.0 6.2
Tax (charge)/credit on other comprehensive income (17.3) 237
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 62.2 (73.6)
Total comprehensive income for the yeaf attributable to owners of the - '
Company 397.9 187.4

The attached notes on pages 11 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/
v



U K Insurance Limited

Balance Sheet
For the year ended 31 December 2014

01179980

2014 2013
Notes £m £m

Assets
Intangible assets 14 0.7 1.0
Property, plant and equipment 15 0.7 - 07
Investment property 16 301.3 217.2
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 17 30.0 300
Reinsurance assets 18 840.2 779.7
Current tax assets 11 041 -
Deferred acquisition costs 19 208.4 2233
Insurance and other receivables 20 1,329.1 12754
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 59.5 69.4
Derivative financial instruments 21 249 407
Financial investments 22 5,956.1 6,662.2
Cash and cash equivalents 23 764.6 705.8
Assets held for sale 24 - 1.0
Total assets : 9,515.6 10,006.4

Equity
Share capital 25 580.8 580.8
~ Other reserves 26 803.7 1,138.4
Retained earnings 743.2 458.5
Total equity 2,127.7 21777

Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities 27 531.6 4927
Insurance liabilities 28 4,644.8 5,112.1
Unearned premium reserve 28 1,434.2 1,479.4
Borrowings 29 249 222
Derivative financial instruments. 21 29.3 17.8
Trade and other payables including insurance payables 30 670.1 680.6
Deferred tax liabilities 12 294 19.9
Current tax liabilities 1 236 40
Total liabilities 7,387.9 7.828.7
Total equity and liabilities 9,515.6 10,006.4

The attached notes on pages 11 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27" March 2015. They were signed on its behalf

by:

John Reizenstein
Director



-U K Insurance Limited 01179980
Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Share' Other Retained
capital ‘reserves earnings Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2013 580.8 13454 2459 21721
Profit for the year - - 2610 2610
Other comprehensive loss < (73.6) - (736)
Transfer of business - realised net gain on AFS investments 26 - -  (26.2) (26.2)
Transfer of business - tax on realised net gain on AFS investments 26 - - 7.4 74
" Dividends 13 - (163.0) . - (163.0)
Transfer to non-distributable reserve N - 296 (29.6) -
Balance at 31 December 2013 580.8 1,1384 4585 21777
Profit for the year S - 33857 3357
Other comprehensive income - 62.2 - 62.2
Transfer of business - realised net gain on AFS investments 26 - - (25.6) (25.6)
Transfer of business - tax on realised net gain on AFS investments 26 - - 6.7 6.7
Dividends 13 - (429.0) - (429.0)
Transfer to non-distributable reserve - 321 (32.1) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 580.8 803.7 743.2 2,127.7

Total changes in equity for the year were entirely attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.

The attached notes on pages 11 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.



U K Insurance Limited 01179980
Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2014
2014 2013

Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 335.7 261.0
Adjustments for:
Investment income (178.9) (169.5)
Instalment income (100.4) (110.9)
Other operating losses 6.5 0.8
Investment property revaluations 5 (26.7) (7.5)
Finance costs 10 37.8 38.0
Tax charge 11 86.4 791
Amortisation expenses 9 . 0.3 0.3
Impairment losses on assets held for sale 24 0.2 -
Impairment losses on reinsurance contracts 18 9.0 (7.5)
Profit on sale of AFS financial investments (17.9) (20.0)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 152.0 63.8
Movements in working capital:
Net decrease in net insurance liabilities including reinsurance assets and deferred
acquisition costs (567.1) (598.8)
Net decrease/(increase) in prepayments, accrued income and other assets 9.9 (5.1)
Net decrease in insurance and other receivables 19.9 69.2
Net (decrease)/increase in trade and other payables including insurance payables ' {10.5) 70.5
Cash used by operations (395.8) (400.4)
Taxes paid (67.7) (59.7)
Net cash used by operating activities before investment of insurance assets (463.5) (460.1)
Interest received 334.9 546.3
Rental income received from investment property 154 11.2
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties 211 -
Proceeds of assets held for sale 08 -
Purchases of investment properties 16 (76.2) (80.8)
Proceeds on disposal/maturity of AFS debt securities and other investment funds 2,800.8 2,9304
Net decrease in loans and receivables 304.7 209.3
Purchases of debt securities (2,340.1) (3,207.9)
Cash generated from investment of insurance assets 1,061.4 408.5
Net cash generated / (used by) from operating activities 597.9 (51.6)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid 13 (429.0) (163:0)
Finance costs (39.2) (39.0)
Net increase’in loans to related parties (73.6) (57.9)
Net cash used by financing activities (541.8) (259.9)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 56.1 (311.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 23 683.6 995.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23 739.7 683.6

The Company classifies the cash flows for the purchase and disposal of financial assets in its operating cash flows as
the purchases are funded from the cash flows associated with the origination of insurance contracts, net of the cash

flows from payment of insurance claims.

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

10



U K Insurance Limited ‘ 01179980

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies

1.1 Presentation of accounts
The accounts have been prepared on the going concern baS|s (see page 1 of the Directors' report) and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASB as adopted by the
European Union (“EU") (together IFRS). The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for
AFS financial assets, investment property and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

‘The Company is incorporated in the UK and registered in England and Wales.
The Company accounts are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

The Company has considerable financial resources and as a consequence, the Directors believe the Company is well
placed to manage its business risks successfully. After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements. The
Company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position
are set out in the Strategic report on page 2 and the Directors’ report on page 3. In addition note 3 to the financial
statements includes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing its insurance and financial risks and
capital.

Adoption of new and revised standards
The following new or revised standards have been adopted in the year and have not had a material impact on the
Company'’s financial statements:

IAS 32 (amended), ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financia! Liabilities’. These
amendments address previous inconsistencies when applying the offsetting criteria in 1AS 32

' IAS 36 (amended), ‘Impairment of asset - Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets’. These amendments
clarify the scope of certain disclosures around the recoverable amount of impaired assets.

IAS 39 (amended), ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement' - These amendments provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies', Clarifies how an entity should account for liabilities to pay levies imposed by governments.

1.2 Consolidated financial statements .

The financial statements contain information about U K Insurance Limited as an individual Company and do not contain

consolidated financial information as the parent of a group. The company is exempt under IFRS 10 Consolidated

Financial Statements and section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial
" statements as the Company and its subsidiaries are included by full consolidation in the IFRS consolidated financial

statements of its parent, Direct Line Insurance Group plc, a public company registered in the United Kingdom.

1.3 Foreign currencies
The Company'’s financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling which is the functional and presentational
currency of the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities are reported in the income statement. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the values
were determined.

11



U K Insurance Limited - 01179980

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies

1.4 Contract classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its
lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obllgat|ons are
extmgunshed :

1.5 Revenue recognition

Premiums earned

Insurance and reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided by
contracts incepted during the financial year, adjusted by an unearned premium provision, which represents the v
proportion of the premiums incepted in prior periods and that relate to periods of insurance cover after the balance sheet
date. Unearned premiums are spread over the period of exposure under the policy, on a daily baS|s 24ths basis or
allowing for the estimated incidence of exposure under policies as appropriate.

Premiums collected by intermediaries or other parties, but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates from
underwriting or past experience, and are included in insurance premiums. Insurance premiums exclude insurance
premium tax or equivalent local taxes and are shown gross of any commission payable to intermediaries or other parties.

Investment return

Interest income on financial assets is determined using the effective interest rate method. The effectlve interest rate
method is a way of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset (or group of financial assets) and of allocating the
interest income over the expected life of the asset. In the case of financial assets classified as AFS, estimates are based
on the straight-line method, which is a close approximation to the effective interest rate.

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the contract. Any gains or losses arising from a change in fair value are recognised in the income statement.’

Instalment income

Instalment income comprlses the interest income earned on policyholder receivables, where outstanding premiums

are settled by a series of instalment payments. Interest is earned using an effective interest rate method over the term of
the policy.

Other operating income

Other operating income includes vehicle replacement referral fee income comprises fees in respect of referral income
received when a customer or a non-fault policy holder (claimant) of another insurer has been provided with a hire vehicle
from a preferred supplier. Income is recognised immediately when the customer or claimant is provided with the hire
vehicle.

12



U K Insurance Limited o 01179980

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies

1.6 Insurance claims

Insurance claims are recognised in the accounting period in which the loss occurs. Provision is made for the full cost of
settling outstanding claims at the balance sheet date, including claims incurred but not yet reported at that date, net of
salvage and subrogation recoveries. Outstanding claims provisions are not discounted for the time value of money
except for claims to be settled by periodic payment orders (‘PPOs") established under the Courts Act 2003. A UK court
can award damages for future pecuniary loss in respect of personal injury or for other damages in respect of personal
injury and may order that the damages are wholly or partly to take the form of PPOs. These are covered in more detail in
notes 2.1 and 3.2.1. Costs for both direct and indirect claims handling expenses are also included.

Provisions are determined by management based on experience of claims settled and on statistical models which require
certain assumptions to be made regarding the incidence, timing and amount of claims and any specific factors such as
adverse weather conditions. When calculating the total provision required, the historical development of claims is
analysed using statistical methodology to extrapolate, within acceptable probability parameters, the value of outstanding
claims (gross and net) at the balance sheet date. Also included in the estimation of outstanding claims are factors such
as the potential for judicial or legislative inflation. In addition, an allowance is made for reinsurance assets deemed not
recoverable. '

Provisions for more recent claims make use of techniques that incorporate expected loss ratios and average claims

cost (adjusted for inflation) and frequency methods. As claims mature, the provisions are increasingly driven by methods
based on actual claim experience. The approach adopted takes into account the nature, type and significance of the
business and the type of data available, with large claims generally being assessed separately. The data used for
statistical modelling purposes is generated internally and reconciled to the accounting data.

The calculation is particularly sensitive to the estimation of the ultimate cost of claims for the particular classes of
business at gross and net levels and the estimation of future claims handling costs. Actual claims experience may differ
from the historical pattern on which the actuarial best estimate is based and the cost of settling individual claims may

. exceed that assumed. As a result, the Company sets provisions at a margin above the actuarial best estimate. This
amount is recorded as claims provisions.

A liability adequacy provision is made for unexpired risks arising where the expected value of net claims and expenses
attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the balance sheet date exceeds the unearned premium
reserve in relation to such policies after the deduction of any acquisition costs deferred and other prepaid amounts (for
example, reinsurance). The expected value is determined by reference to recent experience and allowing for changes to
the premium rates. The provision for unexpired risks is calculated separately by reference to classes of business that are
managed together after taking account of relevant investment returns.

1.7 Claims equalisation reserve
A statutory claims equalisation reserve continues to be included as a non-distributable reserve within other reserves in
equity. This reserve is calculated in accordance with chapter 1.4 of the Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers (INSPRU).

1.8 Reinsurance
The Company has reinsurance treaties and other reinsurance contracts that transfer significant insurance risk.

The Company cedes insurance risk by reinsurance in the normal course of business, with the arrangement and retention
limits varying by product line. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the
premiums for the related direct business being reinsured. Qutward reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same
accounting period as the direct claims to which they relate.

Reinsurance assets include balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilities. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a consistent manner with the outstanding claims provisions or settled claims
associated with the reinsured policies and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract. Recoveries in respect of
PPOs are discounted for the time value of money.

A reinsurance bad debt provision is assessed in respect of reinsurance recoverable, to allow for the risk that the
reinsurance asset may not be collected or where the reinsurer's credit rating has been downgraded significantly. This
also includes an assessment in respect of the ceded part of claims provisions to reflect the credit risk exposure to long-
term reinsurance assets particularly in relation to PPOs. This is affected by the Company reducing the carrying value of
the asset accordingly and the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. .

13



U K Insurance Limited - 01179980

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies

1.9 Deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition costs relating to new and renewing insurance policies are matched with the earning of the premiums to which
they relate. A proportion of acquisition costs incurred during the year is therefore deferred to the subsequent accounting
period to match the extent to which premiums written during the year are unearned at the balance sheet date.

The brincipal acquisition costs deferred are direct advertising expenditure, administration costs, commission paid and
costs associated with telesales and underwriting staff.

1.10 Intangible assets :

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is charged to the income statement over the assets’ economic lives using methods that best reflect
the pattern of economic benefits and is included in other operating expenses. The estimated useful economic lives are as
follows:

Prepaid commission up to 15 years

1.11 Property, plant and equipment

items of property, plant and equipment (except investment property — see accounting policy 1.13) are stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major
components having different useful lives, they are accounted for separately.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis so as to write off the depreciable amount
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Freehold and long leasehold buildings ’ 50 years or the period of the lease if shorter
Other equipment, including property adaptation costs 2 to 15 years

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.12 Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that its intangible assets or property, plant
and equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset
and the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows from the asset, discounted at a rate that reflects
market interest rates, adjusted for risks specific to the asset that have not been reflected in the estimation of future cash
flows.

If the recoverable amount of an intangible asset or property, plant and equipment is less than its carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement and the carrying value of the asset is reduced by the
amount of the impairment loss._

A reversal of an impairment loss on intangible assets or property, plant and equipment is recognised as it arises provided
the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised.

1.13 Investment property

Investment property comprises freehold and long-leasehold properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property is not depreciated but is stated at fair value based on valuations by
independent registered valuers. Fair value is based on current prices for similar properties adjusted for the specific
characteristics of each property. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the income
statement.

Investment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of, or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are
recognised in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

1.14 Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies

1.15 Financial assets

Financial assets can be classified as held-to-maturity, AFS, designated at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and
receivables. The Company only has AFS financial assets and loans and receivables.

Financial assets that are not classified as loans and receivables are classified as AFS. Financial assets can be
designated as AFS on initial recognition. AFS financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly related
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value. Impairment losses and exchange differences resulting
from retranslating the amortised cost of foreign currency monetary AFS financial assets are recognised in the income
statement, together with interest calculated using the effective interest rate method. Other changes in the fair value of
AFS financial assets are reported in a separate component of shareholders eqwty until disposal, when the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Regular way purchases of financial assets classified as loans and receivables are recognised on settlement date; all
other regular way purchases are recognised on trade date.

A financial asset is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The appropriate quoted market price for an asset held
is usually the current bid price. When current bid prices are unavailable, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since
the time of the transaction. If conditions have changed since the time of the transaction (for example, a change in the
risk-free interest rate following the most recent price quote for a corporate bond), the fair value reflects the change in
conditions by reference to current prices or rates for similar financial instruments, as appropriate.

The valuation methodology described above uses observable market data.

If the market for a financial asset is not active, the Company establishes the fair value by using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the Company uses that technique.

The fair value of other investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument are reliably measurable if:

(a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is not significant for that instrument; or
(b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and used in estimating
fair value.

Loans and receivables — Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable repayments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables, except those that are classified as AFS. Loans and receivables are
initially recognised at fair value plus directly related transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any impairment losses.
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1. Accounting policies ' -
1.15 Financial assets

Insurance receivables comprise outstanding insurance premiums where the policyholders have elected to pay

in instalments, or amounts due from third parties where they have collected or are due to collect the money from
the policyholder.

Other loans and receivables principally comprise loans to related parties and other debtors.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets classified as AFS or loans and receivables is impaired. A financial asset or portfolio of financial
assets is impaired and an impairment loss incurred if there is objective evidence that an event or events since initial
recognition of the asset has adversely affected the amount or timing of future cash flows from the asset.

AFS

When a decline in the fair value of a financial asset classified as AFS has been recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. The loss is measured as the difference between the amortised cost of the financial asset and its current fair
value. Impaimment losses on AFS equity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss, but those on AFS debt
instruments are reversed, if there is an increase in fair value that is objectively related to a subsequent event. Subsequent
increases in the fair value of AFS other investment funds are recognised in equity.

Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset or group of financial assets classified as loans
and receivables has been incurred, the Company measures the amount of the loss as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset or group of assets and the present value of estimated future cash flows from the asset or
group of assets, discounted at the effective interest rate of the instrument at initial recognition.

Impairment losses are assessed individually where significant or collectively for assets that are not individually
significant. .

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and the carrying amount of the financial asset or group of
financial assets is reduced by establishing an allowance for the impairment losses. If in a subsequent period the amount -
of the impairment loss reduces and the reduction can be ascribed to an event after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance.

For amounts due from policyholders, the bad debt provision is calculated based upon prior loss experience. For all
balances outstanding in excess of three months, a bad debt provision is made. Where a policy is subsequently
cancelled, the outstanding debt that is overdue is written off to the income statement and the bad debt provision is written
back to the income statement.

Derivatives and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially, and subsequently measured, at fair value. Derivative fair values
are determined from quoted prices in active markets where available. Where there is no active market for an instrument,
fair value is derived from prices for the derivative’s components using appropriate pricing or valuation models. ‘

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of a derivative are recognised as they arise in the income
statement unless the derivative is the hedging instrument in a qualifying hedge. The Company enters into a number of
hedge relationships for cash flow and fair value hedges.

Hedge relationships are formally documented at inception. The documentation identifies the hedged item and the
hedging instrument and details the risk that is being hedged and the way in which effectiveness will be assessed at
inception and during the period of the hedge. if the hedge is not highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows and
fair values attributable to the hedged risk, consistent with the documented risk management strategy, or if the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, hedge accounting is discontinued.

In a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement. The gain or loss
on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recognised in the income statement and, where the hedged item is
measured at amortised cost, adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ,

1. Accounting policies
1.15 Financial assets )
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive the cash flows from that asset have expired or when the
" Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and has transferred substantially al! the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposns with banks together with short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

Borrowings, comprising bank overdrafts and group loans, are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

1.17 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Other than derivatives which
are recognised and measured at fair value, all other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

1.18 Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities comprise subordinated-dated loan notes, which are initially measured at the consideration
received less related transaction costs. Subsequently, subordinated liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method .

1.19 Provisions

The Company recognises a provision for a present legal or constructive obligation from a past event when it is more
likely than not that it will be required to transfer economic benefits to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

The Company accrues for all insurance industry levies, such as the Financial Services Compensation Scheme and Motor
Insurance Bureau.

1.20 Leases '
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a stralght -line basis over the term of
the lease.

1.21 Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The current tax expense is based on the taxable profits for the year as determined in accordance with the relevant tax
legislation, after any adjustments in respect of prior years. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Provision for taxation is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date, and is allocated over profits before taxation and amounts charged or credited to components of other
comprehensive income and equity, as appropriate.

Deferred taxation is accounted for in full using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between
the carrying amount of an asset or liability for accounting purposes and its carrying amount for tax purposes.

Deferred tax liabllities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary timing differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is probable that they will
not be recovered.
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1. Accounting policies

1.21 Taxation )

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are realised or liabilities are settled based
on laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

1.22 Dividends
Interim dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid. Final dividends
on ordinary shares are recognised when they have been approved at a general meeting.

1.23 Accounting developments

In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ that will replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement’ in its entirety. The classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities will be directly
linked to the nature of the instrument’s contractual cash flows and the business model employed by the holder of the
instrument.

The standard introduces a new expected loss model that is a departure from the current incurred loss mode!l. The model
requires a 12 month expected loss to be recognised for all financial instruments when they are first originated or
acquired. In subsequent periods, if there is a significant increase in credit risk of a financial instrument since it was first
entered into or acquired, a full lifetime expected credit losses would then be recognised.

The standard has introduced greater flexibility in the type of transactions eligible for hedge accounting and broadened
the type of instruments that qualify as hedging instruments. The hedge effectiveness test has been replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship'.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, although early adoption is permitted.

In May 2014, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was issued by the IASB, to establish a single
comprehensive model to use in accounting for revenue recognition and measurement, from contracts (note: insurance
contracts are excluded from the scope of IFRS 15) with customers. The standard provides a more perspective guidance
on when and how combined contracts should be unbundled and when a transaction price includes a variable
consideration element. The standard will require the Company to consider contracts with customers to determine if
changes are required to existing accounting practices, but is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, although early adoption is permitted.

2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The reported results of the Company are sensitive to the accounting policies, assumpt|ons and estimates that underlie the
preparation of its financial information. The Company'’s principal accounting policies are set out on pages 11 to 18. UK
company law and [FRS require the Directors, in preparing the Company'’s financial statements, to select suitable accounting
policies, apply them consistently and make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent. In the absence of
an applicable standard or interpretation, IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, requires
management to develop and apply an accounting policy that results in relevant reliable information in the light of the
requirements and guidance in IFRS dealing with similar and related issues and IASB’s Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements. The judgements and assumptions involved in the Company’s accounting policies that
are considered by the Board to be the most important to the portrayal of its financial condition are discussed below. The use
of estimates, assumptions or models that differ from those adopted by the Company would affect its reported results.

2.1 General insurance: outstanding claims provisions and related reinsurance recoveries

The Company makes provision for the full cost of outstanding claims from its general insurance business at the balance
sheet date, including claims estimated to have been incurred but not yet reported at that date and claims handling provision.
Outstanding claims provisions net of related reinsurance recoveries at 31 December 2014 amounted to £3,891.6 million
(2013: £4,394.4 million).

The most common method of settling bodily injury claims is by a lump sum paid to the claimant and in the cases where
this includes an element of indemnity for recurring costs such as loss of earnings or ongoing medical care, settlement
normally occurs using a standardised Ogden annuity factor at a discount rate of 2.5%. This is normally referred to as the
Ogden discount rate which is a prescribed rate set by the Ministry of Justice (“MoJ”). Other estimates are also required
for case management expenses, loss of pension, court protection fees, alterations to accommodation and transportation
fees.
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2, Critical-accounting estimates and judgements

2.1 General insurance: outstanding claims provisions and related reinsurance recoveries

In August 2012, the MoJ announced a review of the approach to setting the Ogden discount rate within the existing legal
framework. Following further consultation, in 2014 the Justice Secretary announced that a panel of three financial
investment experts will be appointed to provide testimony on potential changes to the discount rate on personal injury
damages.

The Company holds provisions for a reduction inv the Ogden discount rate at 31 December 2014 to 1.5% (2013: 1.5%).
Details of sensitivity analysis to be assumed Ogden discount rate shown in note 3.2.1.

An alternative to Ogden based lump sums paid to claimants are PPOs. PPOs give rise to additional claims costs which are
in excess of those calculated based on the Ogden tables. Discounting is applied to the total cost of the PPO and not just the
additional cost.

The table below analyses the outstanding PPO claims provision on a discounted and an undiscounted basis at 31
December. These represent the total cost of PPOs rather than any costs in excess of purely Ogden-based settlement.

Discounted Undiscounted Discounted  Undiscounted

2014 2014 2013 2013
At 31 December _ £m . £m £m £m
Gross claims
Approved PPO claims provisions 397.9 1,136.7 346.6 995.5
Anticipated PPOs 640.2 1,931.5 615.2 1,896.8
Total gross 1,038.1 3,068.2 961.8 2,892.3
Reinsurance )
Approved PPO claims provisions 196.2 594.0 188.0 567.1
Anticipated PPOs 206.5 809.4 150.9 671.0
Total reinsurance 402.7 1,403.4 3389 . 1,238.1
Net of reinsurance
Approved PPO claims provisions 201.7 542.7 158.6 4284
Anticipated PPOs 433.7 11221 464.3 1,225.8
Total net 635.4 1,664.8 622.9 1,654.2

The provision for PPOs have been categorised as either claims which have already settled as PPOs (approved PPO
claims provisions) and those expected to settle as PPOs in the future (anticipated PPOs). Anticipated PPOs consists of
both existing large loss case reserves including allowances for development as well as claims yet to be reported to the
Company. Reinsurance is applied at claim level and the net cash flows are discounted for the time value of money. The
discount rate is consistent with the long duration of the claims payments and the assumed future indexation of the claims
payments.

In the majority of cases, the inflation index agreed in the settlement is the Annual SuNey of Hours and Earnings SOC
6115 inflation, for which the long-term rate is assumed to be 4.0% (2013: 4.0%). The rate of interest used for the
_ calculation of present values is 4.0% (2013: 4.0%), which results in a real discount rate of 0.0% (2013: 0.0%).

Details of sensitivity analysis to the discount rate applied to PPO claims are shown in note 3.2.1.

2.2 Impairment provisions — financial assets

AFS - The Company determines that AFS financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that an event or
events since initial recognition of the assets have adversely affected the amount or timing of future cash flows from the
asset. The determination of which events could have adversely affected the amount or timing of future cash flows from the
asset requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the nomal price
volatility of the financial asset, the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow or where there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
asset below its cost. Impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in these factors.
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2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

2.2 Impairment provisions — financial assets

On a quarterly basis, the Company reviews whether there is any objective evidence that the direct investments in debt
securities are impaired based on the following criteria: .
e price performance of a particular debt security, or group of debt securities, demonstrating an adverse trend compared
to the market as a whole;

¢ adverse movements in the credit rating for corporate debt;
¢ actual, or imminent, default on coupon interest or nominal; or
o offer on buyback of perpetual bonds below par value.

Impairment provision charges on AFS financial assets at 31 December 2014 amounted to £nil (2013: £nil).

Had all the declines in AFS asset values met the criteria above at 31 December 2014, the Company would suffer a

further £15.5 million loss (2013: £34.8 million loss), being the transfer of the total AFS reserve for unrealised losses to
" the income statement. These movements represent mark to market movements and where there is no objective

evidence of any loss events that could affect future cash flows, no impairments are recorded for these movements.

2.3 Fair value

Financial assets classified as AFS debt securities and derivative financial instruments are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value determined using observable market input. The fair value of all AFS debt securities at 31
December 2014 amounted to £5,825.1 million (2013: £6,226.5 million). The fair value of derivative financial assets and
liabilities amounted to £24.9 million (2013: £40.7 million) and £29.3 million (2013: £17.8 miliion) respectively.

Freehold and long leasehold properties that are classified as investment properties are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value. Fair value was determined using the valuation model driven by unobservable inputs and at 31
December amounted to £301.3 million (2013: £217.2 million).

Estimation of the fair value of assets and liabilities
In estimating the fair value of financial assets and investment properties the methods and assumptions used by the
Company incorporate:

Financial assets and liabilities

For fixed maturity securities, fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices. Where market prices are not
readily available, fair values are estimated using either values obtained from quoted market prices or comparable
securities.

Investment property

Investment property is recorded at fair value, measured by independent professionally qualified valuers who hold a
recognised and relevant professional qualification. The valuation model is driven predominantly by unobservable inputs,
as although in part the valuations are compared with recent market transactions for similar properties, they are adjusted
for the specific characteristics of each property.

For disclosure purposes, fair value measurements are classified as Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which fair
value is observable:

Level 1 financial assets are measured in whole or in part by reference to published quotes in an active market. In an
active market quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

Level 2 financial assets are measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices
from observable current market transactions. These are assets for which pricing is obtained via pricing services, but
where prices have not been determined in an active market, or financial assets with fair values based on broker quotes,
investments in private equity funds with fair values obtained via fund managers or assets that are valued usmg the
Group's own models whereby the majority of assumptions are market-observable.

Level 3 fair value measurements used for investment properties are those derived from a valuation technique that
include inputs for the asset that are unobservable.
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2.4 Deferred acquisition costs

The Company defers a proportion of acquisition costs incurred during the year to subsequent accounting periods.
Management use estimation techniques to determine the level of costs to be deferred, by category of business.
Judgement is used to-determine the types of cost that can be deferred and these are referred. to in note 1.9. The total
deferred acquisition costs at 31 December 2014 amounted to £208.4 million (2013: £223.3 million). During 2014, the
Company reviewed the costs included in the calculation of deferred acquisition costs and considers them to be
appropriate, and has determined that they are recoverable.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
The Company does not revalue property, plant and equipment, however it takes appropriate steps to consider whether
the aggregate value of property, plant and equipment exceeds the balance sheet carrying value of such items.

The Company is satisfied that the aggregate value of property, plant and equipment are not less than their carrying
value.

3. Risk management

3.1 Risk management overview :

The Direct Line Insurance Group plc Board (“Group Board”) has responsibility for setting and monitoring adherence to the
risk strategy, risk appetite and risk framework. The Group Board has established a risk management model that separates
the business's risk management responsibilities into “3 lines of defence” as set out below. ’

1st line of defence - Risk ownership
2nd line of defence - Oversight, challenge and support of 1st line
3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

The annual report of DLIG contains a comprehensive review of the risk management framework for the whole group.
Copies can be obtained from Direct Line Group Secretariat, Churchill Court, Westmoreland Road, Bromiey, BR1 1DP,
the Registrar of Companies or through Direct Line Insurance Group’s website at www.directlinegroup.com.

The key risks applicable to the Company are detailed below.

3.2 Insurance risk

The Company is exposed to insurance risk as a primary consequence of its business. Key insurance risks focus on the
inherent uncertainty around the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance liabilities arising through risks accepted
during insurance operations, as defined in the ERM framework.

3.2.1 Reserving risk

Reserving risk relates to both premiums and claims. It is the risk that reserves are assessed incorrectly such that either
insufficient funds have been retained to pay or handle claims as the amounts fall due, both in relation to those claims
which have already been incurred (in relation to claims reserves) or will be incurred in future periods of insurance (in
relation to premium reserves), or a surplus of funds has been retained resulting in opportunity costs.

Reserving risk is controlled through a range of processes:
o regular periodic reviews of the claims, premium and a regular assessmeﬁt of the requirement for a liability adequacy
provision for the main classes of business by the internal actuarial team;

¢ the use of external actuaries to review periodically the actuarial best estimate reserves produced internally, either
through peer review or through provision of independent reserve estimates;

e accompanying all reserve reviews with actuarial assessment of the uncertainties through a variety of techniques
including bootstrapping and scenario analysis;

oversight of the reserving process by relevant senior management and the Board;

. regular reconciliation of the data used in the actuarial reviews against general ledger data and reconciliation of the
claims data history against the equivalent data from prior reviews; and '

¢ assessing the volatility in the reserves to help the Board set management best estimate reserves which it feels
comfortable with.

The Company's reserves are particularly susceptible to potential retrospective changes in legislation and new court
decisions, for example, a change in the Ogden discount rate. This is the discount rate set by the relevant government
bodies and used by courts to calculate lump sum awards in bodily injury cases. The rate is currently 2.5% per annum but
is under review by the MoJ. The Company has calculated its estimated reserves based on an assumed Ogden discount
rate of 1.5%, in recognition of the uncertainty regarding the future rate.

21



U K Insurance Limited 01179980

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. Risk management

3.2.1 Reserving risk

As referred to on page 19, uncertainty in claims reserve estimation is larger for claims such as PPOs for which annually
indexed payments are made periodically over several years or even the lifetime of the injured party. Claims reserves for
PPOs are held on a discounted basis and are impacted by a change to the discount rate.

The table below provides a sensitivity analysis of the potential impact of a change in a single factor with all other
assumptions left unchanged. Other potential risks beyond the ones described in the table could have an additional financial
impact on the Company.

Increase / (decrease) Increase / (decrease) in total
in income statement equity at 31 December
2014 © 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
PPOs'
Impact of an increase in the discount rate used in the calculation of
present values of 100 basis points (“bps”) 86.4 80.5 86.4 80.5
Impact of a decrease in the discount rate used in the calculation of
present values of 100bps (117.5) (116.8) (117.5) (116.8)
Ogden ) .
Impact of an increase in the Ogden discount rate by 100bps 159.6 169.7 159.6 169.7
Impact of a decrease in the Ogden discount rate by 100bps (224.0) (238.2) (224.0) (238.2)
Notes:

1. The sensitivities relating to an increase or decrease in the discount rate used for PPOs illustrate a movement in the time value of money from the
assumed level of 4%. An increase in the discount rate reflects a decrease in the time value of money and therefore the present value of future liabilities
which increases the total equity which would be reflected in the income statement.

The selection of these sensitivities should not be interpreted as avpredicﬁon.
The sensitivities set out above reflect one-off impacts at 31 December.
The sensitivities set out above exclude the impact of taxation.

3.2.2 Pricing and Underwriting risk
The risk of economic loss arising from business being inappropriately accepted (i.e. outside underwriting rules/terms and
conditions) and/or incorrectly priced.

The Company predominantly underwrites personal lines insurance including motor, residential property, roadside
assistance, creditor, travel and pet business. The Company also underwrites commercial risks primarily for low-to-
medium risk trades within the SME market. Contracts are typically issued on an annual basis, which means that the
Company's liability usually extends for a 12-month period, after which the Company is entitled to decline to renew or can
impose renewal terms by amending the premium or other policy terms and conditions such as the excess as appropriate.

3.2.3 Claims management risk
The risk that claims are reserved or paid inappropriately, including the timing of such activity.

Ciaims are managed utilising a range of IT system driven controls coupled with manual processes outlined in detailed
policies and procedures to ensure claims are handled in an appropriate, timely and accurate manner.

Each member of staff has a specified handling authority, with controls preventing them handling or paying claims outside
their authority, as well as controls to mitigate the risk of paying invalid claims. In addition, there are various outsourced
claims handling arrangements, all of which are monitored closely by management, with similar principles applying in
terms of the controls and procedures.

Loss adjustors are used in certain circumstances to handle claims to conclusion. This involves liaison with the
policyholder, third parties, suppliers and the claims function.

Specialist bodily injury claims teams in the UK are responsible for handling these types of losses with the nature of
handling dependent on the level and type of claim. Where applicable they are referred to the technical and large loss
teams who also deal with all other claim types above defined limits or within specific criteria.

A process is in place in the UK business to deal with severe weather and other catastrophic events, known as the ‘Surge
Demand Plan’. A surge is the collective name given to an incident which significantly increases the volume of claims
reported to the Company’s claims functions. The plan covers surge demand triggers, stages of incident, operatlonal
impact, communication and management information momtonng of the impact.
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3.2.4 Reinsurance risk

The risk of inappropriate selection and/or placement of a reinsurance arrangement, with either individual or multiple
reinsurers, which renders the transfer of insurance risk to the reinsurer(s) inappropriate and/or ineffective. Other risks
include:

Reinsurance capacity being reduced and/or. withdrawn,;
Underwriting risk appetite and reinsurance contract terms not being aligned;

Reinsurance contract terms being inappropriate or ineffective resulting in classes or types of busmess not being
appropriately reinsured;

Non adherence to the reinsurance policy terms and conditions, both in terms of policy management and claims not being
handled within the reinsurance contract terms and conditions or paid on an ex-gratia basis resulting in reinsurance
recoveries not being made in full;

Inappropriate or inaccurate management information and/or modelling being used to determine the value for money and
purchasing of reinsurance (including aggragate modelling); and

Changes in the external legal, regulatory, social or economic environment altering the definition and application of
reinsurance policy wordings or effectiveness/value for money of reinsurance.

The Company uses reinsurance to:

» protect the insurance resuits against low-frequency, high-severity losses through the transfer of catastrophe claims
volatility to reinsurers;

o protect the insurance results against unforeseen volumes of, or adverse trends in, Iérge individual claims, in order to
reduce volatility and to improve stability of earnings;

» reduce the Company’s capital requirements; and/or
 transfer risk that is not within the Company’s current risk retention strategy.

Using reinsurance the Company cedes away insurance risk to reinsurers but in return assumes back counterparty risk
against which a reinsurance bad debt provision is assessed. The financial security of the Company’s panel of reinsurers
is therefore extremely important and both the quality and quantum of the assumed counterparty risk are subject to an
approval process. The Company’s leading counterparty exposures are reviewed on a monthly basis whereby
reinsurance is only purchased from reinsurers that hold a credit rating of at least A- at the time cover is purchased. The
Company aims to contract with a diverse range of reinsurers on its contracts to mitigate the counterparty and/or non-
payment risks associated with its reinsurance exposures.

Certain reinsurance contracts have long durations as a result of PPOs, and insurance reserves therefore include
provisions beyond the levels created for shorter term reinsurance bad debt.

3.2.5 Catastophe risk

The risk or loss, or of adverse change, in the value of insurance liabilities resulting from significant uncertainty of pricing and
provisioning assumptions related to extreme or exceptional events.

3.2.6 Insurance concentration risk
The Company is subject to concentration risk in a variety of forms, including:

¢ geographic concentration risk — the Company purchases a UK catastrophe reinsurance programme to protect against
a modelled 1 in 200 year combined windstorm and coastal inundation loss. The retained deductible is £150.0 million
at 31 December 2014 (2013: £150,0 million).

_e product concentration risk — the Company’s business is heavily concentrated in the UK general insurance market.
However, the Company offers a diversified portfolio of products and a variety of brands sold through a range of
distribution channels to its customers;

o sector concentration risk — the concentration of the Company to any given industry sector is monitored and analysed in
respect of commercial customers; and )

e reinsurance concentration risk — reinsurance is purchased from a number of providers to ensure that a diverse range of
counterparties is contracted with, within the desired credit rating range.

It is important to note that none of these risk categories are independent of each other and that giving due consideration
to the relationships between these risks is an important aspect of the effective management of insurance risk.
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3. Risk management

3.2.6 Insurance concentration risk

The following table summarises earned premiums and the claims incurred together with the corresponding loss ratios for
each major class of business on a gross and net of reinsurance basis for the current and prior year. In addition, the table
provides an overview of the concentration of the Company's insurance risk.

2014 ’ 2013

Eamed Claims Loss Earned Claims Loss
premiums incurred Ratio premiums incurred Ratio
£m £m % £m £m %
Motor Gross 1,37286 966.0 70% 1,498.4 1,010.9 67%
Net : 1,2959 897.7 ’ 69% 1,444.8 867.5 67%
Home Gross 920.4 445.1 48% 958.8 476.7 50%
Net 875.3 444.3 51% 908.9 490.3 54%

Rescue and other Gross 370.5 2119 57% - 355.3 218.9 62% _

personal lines

Net ) 369.1 2119 57% 354.1 218.0 62%
Commercial Gross 481.1 2618 54% 468.7 2748 59%
. Net 446.8 2553 57% 434.6 270.6 62%
Run-off Gross o (0.4) (12.2) - (0.1) (94.8) -
Net (0.4) (52.3) - (0.1) (48.1) -
Total Gross 3,144.2 1,812.6 58% 3,281.1 1,886.5 58%
Net 2,986.7 1,756.9 59% 3,142.2 1,898.3 60%

3.3 Financial risk
The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets and financial liabilities. The Company's financial
risk is concentrated within its investment portfolio and reinsurance.

The strategic asset allocation within the investment portfolio is agreed for each legal entity by the Investment Committee.
The Investment Committee determines policy and controls, covering such areas as safety, liquidity and performance.
The Investment Committee meets at least three times a year to evaluate risk exposure, the current strategy, associated
policies and investment guidelines and to consider investment recommendations submitted to it. Oversight of the
implementation of decisions taken by the Investment Committee is via various risk fora.

The investment management objectives are:

« to maintain the safety of the portfolio’s principal both in economic terms and from a capital, accounting and reporting
perspective,;
« to maintain sufficient liquidity to provide cash requirements for operations, including in the event of a catastrophe; and

» to maximise the portfolio’s total return within the constraints of the other objectives and the limits deﬁﬁed by the
investment guidelines and capital allocation.
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3. Risk management

3.3.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk associated with the adverse impact of the market risk factors movement on the Company’s balance
sheet due to changes in the fair value or cash flows of its assets or liabilities.

The Company is mainly exposed to the following market risk factors:

¢ interest rate risk;

o spread risk;

o foreign currency risk; and
o property risk.

The Company has policies and limits approved by the Group Board for managing the market risk exposure. These set
out the principles that the business should adhere to for managing market risk and establishing the maximum limits the
Company is willing to accept considering strategy, risk appetite and capital resources.

The Company monitors its market risk exposure on a monthly basis and has established an aggregate exposure limit
consistent with its risk objective to maintain capital adequacy. Interdependencies across risk types have also been
considered within the aggregate exposure limit. The allocation of the Company’s mvestments across asset classes has
been approved at the investment Committee.

The Company uses its internal capital mode! to determine its capital requirements and market risk limits, and monitors its
market risk exposure based on a 99.5% one-year value at risk measure. The Company also applies market risk stressed
scenarios testing for analysing the economic impact of specific severe market conditions. The resuits of this analysis are
used to enhance the understanding of market risk. The market risk policy explicitly prohibits the use of derivatives for
speculative or gearing purposes, however the Company is able to, and does, use derivatives for hedging its currency risk
and interest rate risk exposures.

Interest rate risk
The Company's interest rate risk arises malnly from its debt, floating interest rate investments and assets and liabilities
exposed to fixed interest rates.

In 2012, DLIG issued £500 million of subordinated debt with a 30-year maturity and fixed rate coupon for the first 10
years. This was passed onto the Company as a subordinated loan. The cost of the fixed rate coupon has been hedged
down to the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) floating rate.

-The Company also invests in floating rate notes, whose investment income is influenced by the movement of the short-
term interest rate. A movement of the short-term interest rate will affect the expected return on the investments.

The market value of the Company’s investments in fixed coupon securities is affected by the movement of the interest
rates. For the investments in US Dollar corporate bonds, the Company hedges the exposure of this portfolio to the US
- Dollar interest rate risk using swaps and futures. The derivatives reduce the duration of the portfolio to close to zero,
eliminating its sensitivity to the US Dollar interest rate fluctuation.

Spread risk

The spread risk represents the risk of the adverse fluctuation of the values of assets and liabilities due to changes in the
level of spreads. The Company is exposed to spread risk through its mvestments in investment grade bonds and
securitised credit.

Foreign currency risk
The exposure to currency risk is generated by the Company’s investments in US Dollar corporate bonds.

At 31 December 2014, the Company maintained exposure to US Dollar securities through its investments in US Dollar
corporate bonds and US Dollar securitised credits. The foreign currency exposure of these investments is hedged by
foreign currency forward contracts, maintaining a minimal unhedged (direct) currency exposure on these portfolios, as
well as a low basis currency risk on the hedging.

Property risk

Property risk results from adverse price fluctuations on real estate investments. At 31 December 2014, the value of these
investments in property was £301.3 million (2013: £217.2 million). The property investments are located in the UK and
are subject to the asset admissibility rules as defined by the PRA.
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3. Risk management

3.3.1 Market risk

The table below provides the sensitivity analysus of the potential impact of a change in a single factor w1th all other
assumptions left unchanged. Other potential risks beyond the ones described in the table oould have an additional
financial impact on the Company.

Increase / (decrease)

Increase / (decrease) in total equity at
in income statement 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Spread
Impact of an increase in AFS financial investments of 100bps
movement in spreads’ - - (163.5) (161.6)

Interest rate
Impact on AFS financial investments and derivatives of an increase in

interest rate of 100bps"? _ 194 17.3 (122.7) (144.0)
Investment property ’

Impact of a decrease in property markets of 15% 45.2 (32.6) 45.2 (32.6)
Notes:

1. The income statement impact on AFS debt securities is limited to floating rate bonds and interest rate derivatives used to hedge a portion of the
portfolio. The income statement is not impacted in relation to fixed rate bonds, where the coupon retum is not impacted by a change in prevailing
market rates, as the accounting treatment for AFS debt securities means that only the coupon received is processed through the income statement
with fair value movements being recognised through total equity.

2. The sensitivities set out above reflect one-off impacts at 31 December with the exception of the income statement interest rate sensitivity on AFS debt
securities, which projects a movement in a full year's interest charge as a result of the increase in the interest rate applied to the AFS debt securities
and interest rate hedges on those positions held at 31 December.

3. The subordinated debt is excluded from the sensitivity analysis.
The selection of these sensitivities should not be interpreted as a prediction.

The sensitivities set out above have not considered the impact of the general market changes on the value of the Company’s insurance contract
liabilities or retirement benefit abligations.

6. The sensitivities set out above exclude the impact of taxation.
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3.3.1 Market risk :
The tables below analyse the maturity of the Company’s derivative assets and liabilities.
Notional
At 31 December 2014 amounts Maturity of fair value
Less than Over
1 year 1-5years § years Total

£m £m £m £m £m
Derivative assets
At fair value through the income statement:
Foreign exchange contracts (forwards) ' 544 03 - - 0.3
Interest rate swaps 696.6 09 1.2 22.5 24.6
Total 751.0 1.2 1.2 225 249

Notional
At 31 December 2014 amounts Maturity of fair value
Less than Over
1 year 1-5years 5 years Total

£m £m £m £m £m
Derivative liabilities '
At fair value through the income statement:
Foreign exchange contracts (forwards) 1,892.3 229 - - 229
Interest rate swaps 424.9 1.3 0.5 486 6.4
Interest rate futures' 540.5 - - - -
Total 2,857.7 24.2 0.5 46 293
Note:

1. Interest rate futures are settled daily with variation margin therefore have a fair value
the fact that there are open positions that the Company has exposure to.

of zero. The notional value is included in the above table to reflect

: . Notional
At 31 December 2013 amounts Maturity of fair value
Less than Over
1 year 1-5years § years Total

£m £m £m £m ‘Em
Derivative assets
At fair value through the income statement: .
Foreign exchange contracts (forwards) 1,315.8 238 - - 238
Interest rate swaps 370.1 (1.0) 1.7 8.9 96
Interest rate futures 561.3 7.3 - - 73
Total 2,247.2 30.1 1.7 8.9 40.7

Notional
At 31 December 2013 amounts Maturity of fair value
Less than Over
1 year 1-S5years 5 years Total

£m £m £m £m £m
Derivative liabilities
At fair value through the income statement:
Interest rate swaps 739.9 (1.1) 04 18.5 17.8
Total 739.9 (1.1) 0.4 18.5 17.8
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3. Risk management

3.3.1 Market risk

The Company has a number of open interest rate and foreign exchange derivative positions. Collateral management
arrangements are in place for significant counterparty exposures. At 31 December 2014 the Company has pledged £17.3
million in cash (2013: £4.9 million in cash and £20.0 million UK Gilts) to cover.of the money derivative positions. At 31
December 2014 counterparties have pledged £21.5 million in UK Gilts (2013: £18.0 million in cash) to the Company to
cover of the money derivative positions.

The terms and conditions of collateral pledged for both assets and liabilities are market standard. When securities are
pledged they are required to be readily convertible to cash, and as such there has been no policy established for the
disposal of assets not readily convertible into cash.

3.3.2 Counterparty risk
Counterparty risk arises from the potential that losses are incurred from the failure of counterparties to meet their credit
obligations, due either to their failure and/or their inability to pay, or their unwillingness to pay amounts due.

Counterparty risk is primarily managed through the Credit Risk and Investment Forum. The main responsibility of this
forum is to ensure that all material aspects of counterparty risk within the Company are identified, monitored and
measured. '

The main sources of counterparty risk for the Company are:

¢ investment counterparty — this arises from the investment of monies in the range of investment vehicles permitted by
the investment policy; and

reinsurance recoveries — counterparty exposure to reinsurance counterparties arises in respect of reinsurance claims
against which a reinsurance bad debt provision is assessed. The Courts Act 2003, implemented in April 2005, gave the
courts the power to award PPOs in place of lump sum awards to cover the future costs element of claims (that is, loss
of future earnings and/or cost of future care). PPOs have the potential to increase the ultimate value of a claim and, by
their very nature, to significantly increase the length of time to reach final payment. This has increased reinsurance
counterparty risk in terms of both quantum and longevity. ’

The tables below analyse the carrying value of financial and insurance assets that bear counterparty risk between those
assets that have not been impaired, by age in relation to due date, and those that have been impaired.

Neither Past due Financial assets Carrying value

past due nor Past due more than thathave been in the balance

impaired 1-90 days 91 days impaired sheet

At 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m
Reinsurance assets 840.2 - - - 840.2
Insurance and other receivables 1,303.5 24.0 1.6 - 1,329.1
Derivative assets 249 - - - 249
AFS debt securities 5,825.1 - - - 5,825.1
Deposits with credit institutions 548 - - - 548
Infrastructure debt 76.2 - - - . 76.2
Cash at bank and in hand 764.6 - - - 764.6
Total 8,889.3 240 16 - 8,914.9
Neither Past due Financial assets Carrying value

past due nor Past due more than that have been in the balance

impaired 1-90 days 91 days impaired sheet

At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Reinsurance assets 779.7 - - - 779.7
Insurance and other receivables 1,251.6 209 29 - 1,2754
Derivative assets 40.7 - - - 40.7
AFS debt securities 6,222.2 - - 43 6,226.5
Deposits with credit institutions 928.9 - - - 928.9
Cash at bank and in hand 2126 - - - 2126
Total 9,435.7 20.9 29 43 9,463.8
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3. Risk management
3.3.2 Counterparty risk

There were no material financial assets that would have been past due or considered for impairment had the contractual
terms not been renegotiated.

Within the analysis of AFS debt securities above are bank debt securities, at 31 December 2014 of £1,328.3 million
(2013: £1,366.9 million), that can be further analysed as: secured £104.1 million (2013: £106.1 million); unsecured
£1,058.3 million (2013: £1,108.9 million); subordinated £165.9 million (2013: £151.9 million)

The tables below analyse the credit quality of AFS debt securities that are neither past due nor impaired.

’ AAA AA +10 AA - A+toA- BBB+toBBB- BB +and below Total

At 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Corporate T 2352 556.6 2,096.5 935.2 2936 41 17.1
Supranational 166.9 94 . - - - 176.3
Local government 426 62.8 15.2 - - 120.6
Sovereign - 983.0 : - 57 - 988.7
Securitised credit' 339.4 83.0 - - - 4224
Total . 784.1 1,694.8 2,111.7 940.9 293.6 5,825.1
AAA AA+t0AA- . A+toA- BBB+toBBB- BB+andbelow Total

At 31 December 2013 £m ) £m £m £m £m £m
Corporate 2723 596.4 2,332.7 1,005.2 - 4,206.6
Supranational 2946 35.8 - - - . 3304
Local government 75.7 440 14.8 - - 1345
Sovereign - 1,362.8 - 5.9 - 1,368.7
Securitised credit' 164.0 18.0 - - - 182.0
Total 806.6 2,057.0 2,347.5 1,011.1 - 6,222.2

Note:
1. Securitised credit is all in the form of prime mortgage backed securities, collateralised loan obligations, securitised student loans and commercial

mortgage backed securities.
{

29



U K Insurance Limited ’ 01179980

" Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. Risk management
3.3.2 Counterparty risk

The tables below analyse, by type of asset, the credit quality of financial and insurance assets that are neither past due nor
impaired excluding debt securities. The table includes reinsurance exposure, after provision. Note 3.2.3 details the
Company's approach to reinsurance counterparty risk management.

AAA  AAHtOAA- A+to A- BBB+10BBB- pp4 g below Not rated Total

At 31 December 2014 . £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Reinsurance assets - 631.9 196.3 43 - 7.7 840.2
Insurance and other receivables' ) - 16.8 171 12.3 .= 12573 1,3035
Derivative assets C - 0.8 0.8 233 . - R 249
Infrastructure debt - - - 76.2 - - 76.2
Deposits with credit institutions 624.0 54.8 - - - g 678.8
Cash at bank and in hand - - 81.4 59.2 - - 140.6
Total i 624.0 704.3 295.6 175.3 - 1,265.0 3,064.2
. AAA  AA*(0AA- A+toA- BBB+10BBB- gpsgbelow  Notrated Total

At 31 December 2013 £m £m . £m £m £m £m £m
Reinsurance assets - 596.3 1723 0.7 - 10.4 779.7
Insurance and other receivables' - 8.8 249 04 - 1,217.5 1,251.6
Derivative assets - 57 35.0 - - = 40.7
Deposits with credit institutions 438.2 60.0 430.7 - - - 928.9
Cash at bank and in hand - - 212.5 - - 0.1 2126

Total . 438.2 670.8 8754 1.1 - 1,228.0 3,213.5

Note:
1. Other loans and receivables due from policyholders, agents, brokers and intermediaries generally do not have a credit rating.

3.3.3 Liquidity risk _
Liquidity risk is the potential that obligations cannot be met as they fall due as a consequence of having a timing
mismatch and/or an inability to raise sufficient liquid assets or cash without suffering a substantial loss on realisation.

The measurement and management of liquidity risk within the Company is undertaken within the limits and other policy
parameters of the Company’s liquidity risk appetite and is detailed within the liquidity risk policy and supporting minimum
standards. Compliance is monitored in respect of both the internal policy and the regulatory requirements of local
regulators.

In the event that one or more liquidity stresses or scenarios crystallises, or should any other event that may impact
liquidity occur, the Company ensures a rapid and controlled response to the event. In such an event, a liquidity crisis
management team will be formed to assess the nature and extent of the threat and to develop an appropriate response.

The table below analyses AFS debt securities by maturity.

' 2014 2013
At 31 December £m £m .
Within 1 year 938.2 946.0
1 -3 years 1,658.3 1,745.0
3-5years 1,175.3 1,685.8
5-10years 1,669.8 1,535.2
Over 10 years 383.5 3145
Total 5,825.1 6,226.5

In addition to the above, the Company held cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2014 of £764.6 million
(2013: £705.8 million) to cover short-term liabilities arising from insurance contracts.
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3. Risk management

3.3.3 Liquidity risk

The tables below analyse insurance and financial liabilities by remaining duration, in proportion to the cash flows
.expected to arise during that period, for each category.

Within Over

. Total 1 year 1~3years 3-Syears 5-10 years 10 years

At 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m

Subordinated liabilities . 531.6 84 - - 523.2 -

Insurance liabilities 4,644.8 1,395.6 1,177.9 649.8 527.9 893.6

Borrowings . 249 249 - - - -
Trade and other payables including '

insurance payables 670.1 670.1 - - - -~

Total 58714 2,099.0 11779 649.8 1,051.1 893.6

Within Over

Total 1 year 1-3years 3-5years 5~ 10 years 10 years

At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m

Subordinated liabilities . 4927 8.5 - - 484.2 -

Insurance liabilities ; 51121 1,571.9 1,2825 594.2 588.1 1,0754

Borrowings . 22 22.2 - - - -

Trade and other payables including
insurance payables : 680.6 680.6 - - - v -
Total 6,307.6 2,2832 1,282.5 594.2 1,072.3 1,075.4

The above tables exclude unearned premium reserves as there are no liquidity risks inherent in them.
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3. Risk management

3.3.4 Investment concentration risk

Concentration risk on investments arises through excessive exposure to particular industry sectors, groups of business
undertakings or similar activities. The Company may suffer significant losses in its investment portfolio as a result of
over-exposure to particular sectors engaged in similar activities or similar economic features that would cause their ability
to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

The table below analyses the distribution of AFS debt securities and infrastructure debt held by geographical area.

' Corporate  Local govemment Sovereign  Securiised Credit ~ AFS debt total Infrastructure Debt -
At 31 December 2014 £m _£m £m £m £m £m
Australia ' 120.2 - - - 120.2 -
Belgium 33.8 - 36 - 374 -
Canada 60.8 343 - - 95.1 -
Cayman Islands 19.3 - - 218.9 238.2 -
China 6.1 - - - 6.1 -
Denmark 25.1 - - - 251 -
Finland ' - 14.2 - - 14.2 -
France : 275.1 234 - - 298.5 -
Germany 3103 5.0 - - 3153 -
Hong Kong 8.5 - - - 8.5 -
Italy " 155 - - - 15.5 -
Japan , 46.9 - - - 46.9 -
Luxembourg 68 - - - 6.8 -
Mexico 12.6° - 56 - 18.2 -
Netherlands 154.4 - - - 154.4 -
New Zealand 36 - - - 36 -
Norway 243 10.1 - - 344 -
Singapore 255 - - - 25.5 -
South Korea 75 76 - - 151 -
Spain 30.6 - - - 30.6 -
Sweden 732 12.9 - - 86.1 -
Switzerland . 826 - - - 82.6 -
UAE - 7.0 - - 7.0 -
UK 1,334.8 = 979.4 69.4 2,383.6 76.2
USA 1,439.6 . 6.0 - 134.2 1,579.8 -
Supranational - - - - 176.4 -
Total 4117.1 120.5 988.6 4224 5,825.1 76.2
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3.3.4 Investment concentration risk
The table below analyses the distribution of AFS debt securities held by geographical area.

Corporate Local govemment Sovereign Securitised credit Total
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Australia 200.9 - - - 200.9
Belgium 359 - - - 35.9.
Brazil 29 - 14 - 43
Canada 58.9 52.2 - - 1111
Cayman Islands 17 , - - - 1.7
Denmark 325 : - - - 325
France 285.1 8.1 - - 293.2
Germany 1 306.2 244 - - 3306
Hong Kong 8.5 - - - 8.5
Italy ‘5.5 - - - 55
Japan 378 - - - 37.8
Mexico 9.0 - 3.0 - 12.0
Netherlands 163.1 . - - - 163.1
New Zealand 14.8 - - - 148
Norway 23.2 24.8 - - 48.0
Russia 53 - - - 5.3
Singapore 244 ’ - - - 244
South Africa - - 14 - 14
South Korea 71 - - - 71
Spain 18.7 - - - 18.7
Sweden 116.3 19.1 - - 135.4
Switzerland 99.9 . - - - 99.9
UAE 6.6 - - - 6.6
UK 1,574.1 - 1,362.9 35.1 2,9721
USA 1,172.5 5.9 - 146.9 1,325.3
Supranational - - - - 3304
Total 4,2109 134.5 1,368.7 182.0 6,226.5
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3. Risk management
3.3.4 Investment concentration risk )
The table below analyses the distribution of AFS debt securities held across industry sector classifications.

2014 2013
At 31 December : ’ £m % £m %
Basic materials ’ 151.9 3% 146.9 2%
Communications 298.5 5% 338.4 5%
Consumer, Cyclical 230.7 4% 162.3 - 3%
Consumer, Non-cyclical 363.4 6% 382.6 6%
Diversified 65.8 1% 796 1%
Energy ' ) 225.7 4% 234.0 4%
Financial ' 1,842.4 32% 18606  30%
Industrial 250.7 4% 2442 4%
Mortgage and other asset backed securities 4224 7% 182.0 3%
Sovereign, supranational and local government 1,285.6 22% 1,833.6 30%
Technology . : 67.8 1% 40.5 1%
Transport 15.2 1% 18.0 0%
Utilities 605.0 10% 703.8 11%
Total 5,825.1 100% 6,226.5 100%

- The table below analyses the distribution of Infrastructure debt by industry sector classifications.

2014 2013
At 31 December ’ £m % £m %
Transport 19.6 26% - -
Social Infrastructure 56.6 74% - -
Total 76.2 100% - -

3.4 Operational risk

Effective operational risk management requires the Company to identify, assess, manage, monitor, report and mitigate
all areas of exposure. Operational risk is inherent in all of the Company’s processes, systems and products, and from
external events, with the Group’s ERM framework detailing the minimum standards, tools, techniques and other
processes used to ensure that operational risks are identified, managed and mitigated to an acceptable level and that
contingency plans are in place.

There are a number of key factors that cause operational risk:

o the Company’s operations support cdmplex transactions and are highly dependent on the proper functioning of its IT
and communication systems;

+ a dependency on the use of third-party information technology, software, data and service providers;

* a need to adequately maintain and protect customer and employee information; and

« the ability of the Group to attract and retain key qualified personnel.

Effective operational risk management helps the Company to achieve its objectives, including:

o focus on doing things the right way, leading to fewer surprises;

» reducing operational errors and losses, leading to increased customer satisfaction and higher-quality earnings;

¢ informed analytical risk taking;

¢ increased management attention to the risks and issues that really matter; and

o lower risk-based capital due to lower expected losses.

3.5 Regulatory risk

The risk is managed by a dedicated team responsible for providing expert advice and guidance to all parts of the
business on regulatory, political and legislative change, including Solvency Il. Through proactive and early engagement
the team raises awareness of regulatory changes, enabling management to plan for potential threats and opportunities.

The team also supports the business in identifying, analysing and coordinating responses to relevant UK and European
regulatory developments through to facilitating the initiation of implementation programmes.
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3. Risk management

3.6 Capital adequacy

The Company determines the appropriate level of capital on the basis of a number of criteria including its risk-based
requirement, the maintenance of a prudent excess versus regulatory capital requirements and ensuring consistency with
a credit rating in the “A” range.

The Company uses risk based capital modelling to determine how much capital it needs to maintain in order to operate in
accordance with its risk strategy established within its ERM framework. The risk based capital model also supports
"decision making in the business. In addition, the Company also monitors financial resources with reference to its
Minimum Capital Requirements ("MCR”).

The Company performs an assessment of the adequacy of its overall financial resources in accordance with the PRA's ICA
methodology. This is based on an internal capital model which is calibrated, as required by the PRA, to a 99.5% confidence
interval over a one year time horizon. The adequacy of the future financial resources over the financial planning period is
assessed using stress tests.

The Company has an adjusted solo MCR surplus as at 31 December 2014 of £1,687.0 million (2013: £1,736.1 million)
based on the PRA returns.

In addition the Company is currently going through the new ICAS+ process with the PRA to assess the Company'’s future
individual capital guidance. The ICAS+ process will also enable the Company to obtain feedback on its progress towards
Solvency ll. This process is more involved than previous years and includes a detailed assessment of the intemal risk-
based capital model.

Management information to monitor the Company’s capital requirements and solvency position is produced and
presented to the Asset and Liability Committee and the Company Board on a regular basis.
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4. Net earned premium
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2014 2013
£m £m
Gross earned premium:
Gross written premium 3,099.0 3,194.2
Movement in unearned premium reserve 45.2 86.9
3,144.2 "3,281.1
Reinsurance premium ceded:
Premium payables (182.5) (138.2)
Movement in reinsurance unearned premium reserve 25.0 0.7)
(157.5) (138.9)
Total 2,986.7 3,142.2
5. Investment return
2014 2013
£m £m
Investment income: _
Interest income on AFS debt securities 1544 150.6
Interest income from related parties (note 34) 2.3 1.6
Cash and cash equivalent interest income 44 6.1
Rental income from investment property 154 11.2
Interest income from infrastructure debt 0.1 -
176.6 169.5
Net realised gains / (losses): .
AFS Debt securities 16.6 20.0
Derivatives (86.2) 21.4
Investment property (noté 16) 23 -
(67.3) 414
Net unrealised gains / (losses):
Impairment of AFS debt securities 13 -
Derivatives 79.6 (22.2)
Investment property (note 16) 26.7 7.5
107.6 (14.7)
Total 216.9 196.2
The table below analyses the realised and unrealised derivatives included in investment return:
2014 2013
Realised Unrealised Realised Unrealised
£m £m £m £m
Derivative (losses) / gains
12.
Foreign exchange forward contracts (59.3) (46.4) 211 0
Associated foreign exchange risk (7.4) 1159 20 (33.3)
Net (losses) / gains on foreign exchange forward contracts (66.7) 69.5 231 (21.3)
Interest rate derivatives (20.4) (22.1) 0.8) 19.6
Associated interest rate risk 0.9 322 (0.9) (20.5)
Net (losses) / gains on interest rate derivatives (19.5) 101 (1.7) (0.9)
Total (86.2) 79.6 214 (22.2)
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6. Other operating income

2014 2013

£m £m

Vehicle replacement referral income 15.8 15.7
Other income 0.1 0.2
Total 15.9 15.9

7. Net insurance claims

2014 .
Gross Reinsurance Net
£m £m £
Current accident year claims paid 1,116.5 - 1,116.5
Prior accident years claims paid 1,163.1 (20.1) 1,143.0
Movement in insurance liabilities (467.0) (35.6) (502.6)
Total 1,812.6 (55.7) 1,756.9
2013
Gross Reinsurance Net
) £m £m £m
Current accident year claims paid 1,085.9 0.1) 1,085.8
Prior accident years claims paid 1,382.0 (22.0) 1,360.0
Movement in insurance liabilities (581.4) 339 (547.5)
Total 1,886.5 11.8 1,898.3
Claims handling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 of £226.3 million (2013: £240.5 million) have been
included in the claims figures above.
8. Commission expenses
2014 2013
£m £m
Commission expenses 267.3 276.9
Expenses incurred under profit participations 90.5 56.1
Total 357.8 333.0
9. Operating.expenses
2014 2013
£m £m
Marketing and administration expense 744.8 8555
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.3 0.3
Impairment of assets held for sale 0.2 -
Total 7453 855.8
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9. Operating expenses
Auditor’s remuneration

Fees for audit and non-audit services, included within marketing and administration expenses, are borne and recharged
by a related party, DL Insurance Services Limited.

Fees paid to the auditor in respect of the statutory audit of the Company amount to £1,264,000 (2013: £1,172,000).

Fees in respect of the audit of the PRA Annual Insurance Return amount to £80,000 in 2014 (2013: £80,000) and fees
for other services amount to £nil (2013: £nil).

Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are executives of DLIG. All strategic and management decisions for the Company are
made by the executive of DLIG, comprising the Board of Directors and Executive Committee. No Directors who served
during this or the previous year were remunerated by the Company. The services provided by the Directors to the
Company are non-executive in their nature.

The total Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in DLIG is as follows:

2014 2013

£m £m

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind : ’ 34 3.2
Gains on exercise of share options 1.2 05
Defined contribution pension scheme contributions . 0.1 0.1

Total : 4.7 38

At 31 December 2014, one Director (2013: one) had retirement benefits accruing under the defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of qualifying service.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 two Directors exercised share options (2013: two) in relation to an RBS Group
Long-Term Incentive Plan and incentive deferral plans.

The compensation of key management personnel in relation to the executive of the Group is disclosed in note 34 of
these accounts.

10. Finance costs

2014 2013
. £m £m
Interest expense on subordinated loan . 37.8 38.0
11. Tax charge
2014 2013
£m £m
Current taxation:
Charge for the year 78.9 72.2
(Over) / under provision in respect of prior year ) (2.0) 0.9
. 76.9 . 731
Deferred taxation (note 12): ]
Charge for the year 10.8 6.5
Over provision in respect of prior year (1.3) (0.5)
9.5 6.0
Current taxation 76.9 731
Deferred-taxation (note 12) : 9.5 6.0
Tax charge for the year : 86.4 79.1
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11. Tax charge

The actual income tax charge differs from the expected income tax charge computed by applying the standard rate of UK
corporation tax of 21.5%' (2013: 23.25%) as follows:

2014 2013
£m £m
Profit before tax 4221 340.1
Expected tax charge 90.7 791
Effects of:
Non-deductible items ' - 0.4
Revaluation of properties (1.3) (0.1)
Effect of change in UK taxation rate . 04 0.7)
Adjustments in respect of prior year (3.4) 04
Tax charge for the year 86.4 79.1
Effective income tax rate : 20.5% 23.3%
Note:

1. The UK Government enacted a reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% effective from 1 April 2013 in the Finance Act 2013 and in
the Finance Act 2014 enacted further reductions to 21% effective from 1 April 2014 and 20% effective from 1 April 2015. As a consequence the closing
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets or liabilities are settled. The impact of these
changes on the tax charge for the year is set out in the table above.

2014 2013
. £m £m

Per balance sheet:

Current tax assets ) 0.1 -

Current tax liabilities : 23.8 4.0

12. Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Company, and the movements thereon, during the current
and prior reporting years.

Depreciation
Other in excess of Non-

temporary capital distributable Investment
differences allowances reserve property Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 - (0.8) (0.3) 15.0 - 13.9
Charge to income statement 08 0.1 36 1.5 6.0
Other movements - - - - -
At 31 December 2013 - (0.2) 18.6 1.5 199
(Credit)/charge to income statement - - (0.2) - 6.4 33 9.5
At 31 December 2014 {0.2) 0.2) 25.0 4.8 - 294
2014 2013
£m £m

Per balance sheet:

Deferred tax liabilities 29.4 19.9
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13. Dividends
2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 34.6p (2012: 20.7p) per share 201.0, 120.0
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 39.3p (2013: 7.4p) per share 228.0 43.0
: 429.0 163.0
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 63.7p (2013: 34.6p) per share 370.0 201.0
14. Intangible assets
Prepaid commissions
£m
Cost
At January, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 4.7
Prepaid commissions
£m
Amortisation
At 1 January 2013 34
Charge for the year 03
At 31 December 2013 37
Charge for the year / 0.3
At 31 December 2014 ’ 4.0
Net book amount
At 31 December 2014 0.7
At 31 December 2013 1.0
'15. Property, plant and equipment
£m
Cost
At 1 January, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 0.9
£m
Depreciation
At 1 January, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 0.2
Net book amount
At 1 January, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 0.7
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16. Investment property

2014 2013

£m £m
At 1 January . . 217.2 128.9
Additions 76.2 80.8
Increase in fair value during the year 29.0 75
Disposals (21.1) -
At 31 December 301.3 217.2

Investment properties were purchased to provide an investment return over the long term in accordance with the
Company’s investment strategy. These properties are managed, on behalf of the Company, by a property services
company. .

The investment properties are measured at fair value which was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at the
balance sheet date by independent valuers. The valuation conforms to international valuation standards. The fair value
was determined using a methodology based on recent market transactions for similar properties, which have been
adjusted for the specific characteristics of each property within the portfolio. This approach to valuation is consistent
with the methodology used in 2013. There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year. All
investment properties are classified as level 3 under the fair value reporting hierarchy. As described in note 2.3 fair
value equates to carrying value. N

The lease agreements are drawn up in line with local practice and the Company has no exposure to leases that include
contingent rents.

17. Subsidiaries

2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January and 31 December ) 30.0 30.0

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as follows.

The Company holds 100% of the share capital of the following companies. All companies are registered in England and
Wales.

. Type of
Place of incorporation ownership interest Proportion of
Name of subsidiary : and operation (share type) voting power held Principal activity
Churchill Insurance Company Limited  Great Britain Ordinary 100% General insurance
Direct Line Insurance Limited Great Britain Ordinary 100% Non-trading
The National Insurance and Guarantee )
Corporation Limited Great Britain Ordinary 100% Non-trading
18. Reinsurance assets
2014 2013
£m £m
Reinsurers’ share of general insurance liabilities 892.5 823.0
Impairment provision . (52.3) (43.3)
Total . 840.2 779.7
Analysis of movement in impairment provision: .
2014 2013
. £m £m
At 1-January (43.3) (50.8)
Additional provision . (9.0) (3.4)
Utilisation of provision - 20
Release to income statement - 89
At 31 December . ' (52.3) (43.3)
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19. Deferred acquisition costs
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2014 2013
£m £m.
At 1 January 2233 2508
Net charge to the income statement (14.9) (27.5)
At 31 December 208.4 2233
20. Insurance and other receivables
2014 2013
£m £m
Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts:
Due from policyholders 790.7 8304
Impairment of policyholder receivables (0.6) (0.4)
Due from agents, brokers and intermediaries 54.3 52.8
Impaiment of agent, broker and intermediary receivables 0.7) 0.5)
Due from reinsurers 31.0 18.9
Other loans and receivables:
Accrued interest - 1.3
Receivables from related parties 4226 3404
Other debtors 31.8 325
Total 1,329.1 1,275.4
21. Derivative financial instruments
2014 2013
£m £m
Derivative assets
At fair value through the income statement 249 40.7
Total 24.9 40.7
Derivative liabilities '
At fair value through the income statement 29.3 17.8
Total 293 17.8

Derivative financial instruments as shown above are all classified as level 2 under the fair value hierarchy as described in

note 2.3. These are measured at fair value, which equates to carrying value.
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22. Financial investments

2014 2013
£m £m
AFS debt securities:
Corporate ‘ 41174 42109
Supranational 176.3 3304
Local government 120.7 134.5
Sovereign 988.6 1,368.7
Securitised credit : 4224 182.0
Total ' 5,825.1 6,226.5
AFS debt securities:
Listed debt securities — fixed interest rate 5142.2 5,761.2
Listed debt securities - floating interest rate 682.9 465.3
Total 5,825.1 6,226.5
Loans and receivables:
Deposits with credit institutions with maturities in excess of three months: 54.8 4357
Infrastructure debt 76.2 -
Total . : 59561 ~ 66622

The following table analyses of financial instruments recorded at fair value, which equates to their carrying value, by level
of the fair value hierarchy:

o 2014 2013
At 31 December ‘€m £m
Level 1' v 980.4 1,362.9
Level 2" 48447 48636
Total . 5,825.1 6,226.5
Notes:
1. Please refer to note 2.3 for details of the fair value hierarchy.
2. The Company held no level 3 AFS debt securities at 31 December 2014 (2013 £nil).
23. Cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 140.6 2126
Short-term deposits with credit institutions 624.0 493.2

Total 764.6 705.8

The effective interest rate on short-term deposits with credit institutions for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 0.59%
(2013: 0.41%) and average maturity was 10 days (2013: 14 days).

The following table details cash and bank overdrafts for the purposes of the cash flow statement.

2014 2013

. £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 764.6 705.8
Bank overdrafts (24.9) (22.2)
Total ' 739.7 683.6
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2014 2013
. £m £m
Freehold property held for sale - 1.0

On 7 July 2014 the Company disposed of the freehold propérty that it no Iongef utilised at Lumbry Park; Alton for £0.8

million. Impairment losses recognised in the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to £0.2 million (2013: £nil).

25, Share capital

2014 2013
£€m £m

Issued and fully paid: equity shares
580.8 million ordinary shares of £1 each
At 1 January and 31 December 580.8 580.8
26. Other reserves

2014 2013

£m £m
Capital contribution reserve 626.8 1,055.8
Reserve for revaluation of AFS investments and merger reserve 520 (10.2)
Other non-distributable reserve 124.9 928
Other reserves 803.7 1,138.4
Movements in the revaluation reserve for AFS investments were as follows:
Debt AFS reserve
securities transferred Merger reserve Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2013 634 80.1 (80.1) 634
Revaluation during the year — gross (103.5) - - (103.5)
Revaluation during the year — tax 251 - - 25.1
Transfer of business — realised net gains on AFS
investments — gross - (26.2) 26.2 -
Transfer of business — realised net gains on AFS .
investments — tax . - 7.4 (7.4) -
Realised net gains — gross 6.2 - - 6.2
Realised net gains — tax (1.4) - - (1.4)
At 31 December 2013 (10.2) 61.3 (61.3) (10.2)
Revaluation during the year — gross 70.5 - - 70.5
Revaluation during the year — tax (15.4) - - (15.4)
Transfer of business — realised net gains on AFS
investments — gross - (25.6) 256 -
Transfer of business — realised net gains on AFS
investments — tax - 6.7 (6.7) -
Realised net loss — gross 9.0 - - 9.0
Realised net loss - tax (1.9) - - (1.9)
At 31 December 2014 52.0 (42.4) 52.0
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26. Other reserves

On 10 December 2011, Churchill Insurance Company Limited (“CIC"), Direct Line Insurance Limited and The Nationat
Insurance and Guarantee Corporation Limited, transferred their underlying businesses into the Company, with the exception
of a small amount of business which remained in CIC. The Company has accounted for the transferred assets and liabilities
using the carrying amounts of predecessor entities and in respect of AFS investments the Company has inherited the AFS
reserve at the point of the transfer. Movements in respect of the AFS reserve transferred in are recognised together with
other reserve movements on AFS investments. The original merger reserve transferred in is reduced and transferred
directly to retained earnings upon impairment, maturity or disposal of the underlying assets.

Movements in the other non-distributable reserve were as follows:

2014 2013

) £m £m

At 1 January " 9238 63.2
Transfer from retained earnings 321 29.6
At 31 December © 1249 92.8

The other non-distributable reserve relates to a UK statutory claims equalisation reserve that is calculated in accordance
with the rules of the PRA. -

27. Subordinated liabilities

2014 2013
. £m £m
Subordinated loan 531.6 4927

The subordinated loan was issued on 27 April 2012 at a fixed rate of 9.5%. On issuance the Company entered into a 10-
year hedge to exchange the fixed rate of interest for a floating rate of three-month LIBOR plus a spread of 706 basis
points.

During 2013, a Credit Value Adjustment was made to the interest rate hedge to reflect the market value of counterparty
credit risk resulting from the majority divestment from RBS Group. This has resulted in an increase in the floating rate to
three-month LIBOR plus a spread of 707 basis points with effect from 29 July 2012. .

The nominal £500 million loan has a rederﬁption date of 27 April 2042. The Company has the option to repay the ioan on
specific dates from 27 April 2022. If the notes are not repaid on that date, the rate of interest would be reset at a rate of
the si)g-month LIBOR plus 8.16%.

The loan is an unsecured, subordinated obligation of the Company, and ranks pari passu without any preference over
other creditors. In the event of a winding-up or of bankruptcy, it is to be repaid only after the claims of all other creditors
have been met.

There have been no defaults on the loan during the year. The Company has the option to defer interest payments on the
loan but to date has not exercised this right.

The carrying value of the subordinated oan equals the fair value.
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28. Insurance liabilities, unearned premium reserve and reinsurance assets

2014 2013
£m £m
Gross insurance liabilities (including unearned premium reserve)
Claims reported 2,7714 3,105.1
Claims incurred but not reported 1,768.8 1,902.7
Claims handling provision 104.6 1043
Total . ‘ ' 46448 51121
Unearned premium reserve . 1,434.2 1,479.4
Total i . i 6,079.0 6,591.5
Reinsurers' share of insurance (including unearned premium reserve)
Claims reported (301.6) (277.6)
Claims incurred but not reported ' (451.6) (440.1)
Total (753.2) (717.7)
Unearned premium reserve ’ (87.0) (62.0)
Total (840.2) (779.7)
Net insurance liabilities (including unearned premium reserve) ]
Claims reported 2,469.8 28275
Claims incurred but not reported 1,317.2 1,462.6
Claims handling provision 104.6 104.3
Total 3,891.6 43944
Unearned premium reserve 1,347.2 1,417.4
Total : 5,238.8 5811.8
Gross general insurance liabilities
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 Total
Accident year £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Estimate of ultimate
claims costs:
At end of accident
year 3,7106 3,789.1 40147 33934 3,8183 42980 28886 24075 22117 21255 32,6584
One year later (167.6) (256.0) (44.7) 1393 5065 (172.0) (99.3) (163.3) (117.6) - (374.7)
Two years later (1325) (5.0) 674 4818 (1434) (99.2) (94.6) (119.0) - - (44.5)
Three years later (54.0) 1123 4492 (1989) (13.9) (502) (89.4) - - - 155.1
Four years later 186 2611 (784) (16.7) (101.5) (105.6) - - - - (22.5)
Five years later 164.8 (111.1)  (121) (554) (38.8) - - - - - (52.6)
Six years later (544) (11.0) (245) (45.7) - - - - - - (135.6)
Seven years later 82 (135) (18.8) - - - - - - - (24.1)
Eight years later (32.8) 21 - - - - - - - - (30.7)
Nine years later 1.6 - - - - - - - - - 1.6
Current estimate of
cumulative claims 3,462.5 3,768.0 4,3528 3,697.8 4,027.2 38720 26053 21252 20941 21255 32,1304
Cumulative payments
to date - (3,356.8) (3,586.4) (4,115.1) (3,506.9) (3,664.3) (3,468.8) (2,183.7) (1,709.3) (1,401.2) (986.2) (27,978.7)
Liability recognised
in balance sheet 105.7 181.6 237.7 1909 3629 403.2 4216 4159 6929 1,139.3 4,151.7
2004 and prior 388.5
Claims handling
provision 104.6
Total gross liability 4,644.8
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28. Insurance liabilities, unearned premium reserve and reinsurance assets

Net general insurance liabilities

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
Accident year £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Estimate of ultimate ’
claims costs:
At end of accident )
year 3,0388 3,1853 34673 3,359.2 3,7973 4,1506 28100 23066 2,121.7 2,002.1 30,238.9
One year later (139.8) (242.8) (59.0) 1353 3588 (1347) (131.5) (146.7) (124.6) - (485.0)
Two years later (122.0) (452) 507 2655 (61.4) (1205) (82.2) (107.9) - - (223.0)
Three years later (496) 843 2108 (1509) (54.0) (44.0) (76.4) - - - (79.8)
Four years later - 0.9 207 (26.3) (458) (67.0) (93.6) - - - - (211.1)
Five years later 37.6 226 (17.7) (486) (29.5) - - - - - (35.6)
Six years later 122 (19.7) (19.6) (30.9) - - - - - - (58.0)
Seven years later 9.5) (13.1) (16.0) - - - - - - - (38.6)
Eight years later (25.4) 36 - - - - - - - - (21.8)
Nine years later 33 - - - - - - - - - 33

Current estimate of -
cumulative claims 2,7465 29957 3590.2 34838 39442 37578 25199 20520 19971 20021 29,089.3

Cumuiative payments

to date (2,680.0) (2,858.2) (3,408.7) (3,342.3) (3,609.3) (3,392.7) (2,135.7) (1,695.9) (1,396.8) (986.1) (25,505.7)
Liability recognised

in balance sheet 665 1375 1815 1415 3349 365.1 3842 356.1 600.3 1,016.0 3,683.6
2004 and prior * . 203.4
Claims handling .

provision . 104.6
Total net liability 3,891.6

Movements in insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

Gross Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m
Claims reported 3,636.1 (253.4) 3,382.7
Incurred but not reported 2,053.1 (498.1) 1,555.0
Liability adequacy provision 43 - 43
At 1 January 2013 5,693.5 (751.5) 49420
Cash paid for claims settled in the year (2,467.9) 221 (2,445.8)
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities: .
Arising from current-year claims 2,438.3 (90.0) 2,348.3
Arising from prior-year claims (547.5) 101.7 . (445.8)
Decrease in liability adequacy provision ‘ . (4.3) - (4.3)
At 31 December 2013 . 5,112.1 (717.7) 4,394.4
Claims reported 3,105.1 (277.6) 2,8275
Incurred but not reported 1,902.7 (440.1) 1,462.6
Claims handling provision 104.3 - 104.3
At 31 December 2013 51121 (717.7) 4,394 4
Cash paid for claims settled in the year (2,279.6) 20.1 (2,259.5)
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities: i
Arising from current-year claims 2,331.6 (123.5) 2,208.1
Arising from prior-year claims . (519.3) 67.9 (451.4)
At 31 December 2014 4,644.8 (753.2) 3,891.6
Claims reported ’ 2,7714 (301.6) 2,469.8
Incurred but not reported 1,768.8 (451.6) 1,317.2
Claims handling provision : 104.6 - 104.6

At 31 December 2014 , 4,644.8 (753.2)  3,891.6
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28. Insurance liabilities, unearned premium reserve and reinsurance assets

Movement in unearned premium reserve

01179980

Gross Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 . : 1,566.3 (62.7) 1,503.6
Net movement in the year ) (86.9) 0.7 (86.2)
At 31 December 2013 ’ 1,479.4 (62.0) 14174
Net movement in the year ' (45.2) (25.0) (70.2)
At 31 December 2014 . 1,434.2 (87.0) 1,347.2
29. Borrowings
2014 2013
£m £m
Bank overdrafts - third parties 24.9 -
Bank overdrafts - related parties - 222
Total 249 22.2
30. Trade and other payables inclu}!ing insurance payables
2014 2013
£m £m
Due to agents, brokers and intermediarie 20.5 14.4
Due to reinsurers : 571 416
Due to insurance companies 51 8.2
Due to related parties 261.8 265.9
Trade creditors and accruals 155.5 96.5
Other creditors 95.1 168.7
Other taxes 444 47.0
Provisions 27.8 359
Deferred income 28 24
Total 670.1 680.6
Movements during the year in provisions are as follows:
Regulatory
levies Other Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2014 27.3 86 359
Additional provision - ' 334 - 334
Release to income statement - (4.2) (4.2)
Utilisation of provision (34.2) (3.1) (37.3)
At 31 December 2014 : 26.5 13 278

The expected timing of any resulting outflows fall within twelve monthé of the balance sheet date.

31. Contingencies and guarantees

The Company has guaranteed the principal and interest payments of £500.0 million of subordinated loan notes issued by
DLIG on 27 April 2012 that have a fixed rate of interest at 9.25%. The nominal £500.0 million have a redemption date of
27 April 2042. DLIG has the option to repay the notes on specific dates from 27 April 2022. If the notes are not repaid on

27 April 2022, the rate of interest would be reset at a rate of the six-month LIBOR plus 7.91%.

At 31 December 2014, the accrued interest amounted to £8.3 million (2013: £8.3 million), interest is payable on the notes

‘by DLIG semi-annually on 27 April and 27 October.
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32. Commitments

Operating lease commitments
The Company leases vehicles under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.

The Company also leases vehicles and other assets under cancellable operating lease agreements.

2014 2013
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 16.1 13.6

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows: ' :

2014 2013

X £m £m

Within one year 131 18.3
In the second to fifth years inclusive 51.0 62.7
After five years 164.7 ‘2223
Total 228.8 303.3

Operating lease commitments where the company is the lessor

Future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2014 2013

£m £m

Within one year - : : 141 12.4
In the second to fifth years inclusive 50.1 421
After five years . 99.1 83.8
Total . . ) 163.3 138.3
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33. Classiﬁcation_ of financial instruments

The following table analyses the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the categories of
financial instruments in IAS 39. Non-financial assets and liabilities outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown separately.
Other than those financial assets and liabilities stated at falr value below, the carrying value of all other financial assets
and liabilities equals their fair value.

Financial assets / liabilities

Non-financial
At fair Loans and At amortised assets /

: ’ value AFS receivables costs liabilities Total
At 31 December 2014 _ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets .
Intangible assets - - - - 0.7 0.7
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 0.7 0.7
Investment property ; - - - - 3013 301.3
Investments in subsidiaries - - - - 30.0 30.0
Reinsurance assets - - - - 840.2 840.2
Current tax assets - - - - 0.1 0.1
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - 208.4 208.4
Insurance and other receivables : - - 1,329.1 - - 1,329.1
Prepayments, accruéd income and other
assets .- - - - 59.5 59.5
Derivative financial instruments 249 - - - - 249
Financial investments - 5,825.1 131.0 - - 5,956.1
Cash and cash equivalents - - 764.6 - - 764.6
Total assets 249 5,825.1 2,2247 - 1,440.9 9,515.6
Liabilities
Subordinated liabilities ' - - - 5316 - 531.6
Insurance liabilities ) - - - - 46448 4,644.8
Unearned premium reserve - - - - 14342 1,434.2
Borrowings - - - 249 - 249
Derivative financial instruments 29.3 - - - - 29.3
Trade and other payables including
insurance payables - - - 642.4 277 670.1
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 29.4 29.4
Current tax liabilities - - - - 236 23.6
Total liabilities 29.3 - - 1,198.9 6,159.7 7,387.9
Total equity ) 2,121.7
Total equity and liabilities 9,515.6
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33. Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets / liabilities

Non-financial
) At fair Loans and At amortised assets /

value AFS receivables costs liabilities Total
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Intangible assets - - ~ - 1.0 1.0
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 07’ 07
Investment property - - - - 217.2 217.2
Investmer{ts in subsidiaries - - - - 30.0 300
Reinsurance assets . - - - - 779.7 779.7
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - 2233 2233
Insurance and other receivables - - 1,275.4 - - 12754
Prepayments, accrued income and other
assets - - - - 69.4 69.4
Derivative financial instruments 40.7 - - - - 40.7
Financial investments - 6,226.5 435.7 - - 6,662.2
Cash and cash equivalents - - 705.8 - - 705.8
Assets held for sale - - - - 1.0 1.0
Total Assets 40.7 6,226.5 24169 - 1,322.3 10,006.4
Liabilities t .o
Subordinated liabilities - - - 4927 - 4927
Insurance liabilities ' - - - - 5112.1 5,112.1
Unearned premium reserve - - - - 1,479.4 1,479.4
Borrowings - - - 22:2 - 222
Derivative financial instruments 17.8 - - -~ - 178
Trade and other payables including :
insurance payables ' - - - 644.7 35.9 680.6
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 19.9 19.9
Current tax liabilities ~ - = ~ 4.0 40
Total Liabilities 17.8 - - 1,159.6 6,651.3 7,828.7
Total equity 2177.7
Total equity and liabilities 10,006.4
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34. Related parties

On 13 March 2013, The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc (‘"RBSG") sold 16.8% of DLIG's shares and ceased to be the
controlling shareholder of Direct Line Group. On 20 September 2013, RBSG sold a further 20.0% of DLIG'’s ordinary
shares, which was a further step towards the complete disposal of Direct Line Group. At 31 December 2013 RBSG held
28.5% of the issued ordinary share capital and the Group was treated as an associated undertaking in the RBS Group
results. On 27 February 2014, RBSG sold its remaining holding of DLIG shares. The sale marks the completion of RBS
Group's EC-mandated disposal of its interest in Direct Line Group which thus ceased to be a related party of the
Company.

The UK Government through HM Treasury is the ultimate controlling party of RBSG and was as a consequence a related
party of Direct Line Group. This gives rise to related party transactions and balances, specifically in respect of tax with
HMRC and debt security investments with.the UK Government.

As at 31 December 2014 the ultimate holding company was DLIG, which is also the immediate parent company and is
incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

As at 31 December 2014 DLIG heads the largest and smallest group in which the Company is consolidated. Copies of
the consolidated accounts of Direct Line Insurance Group plc may be obtained from The Secretary, DLIG, Churchill
Court, Westmoreland Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1DP.

The following transactions were with related parties, who are members of RBS Group or the Group.

Sales of insurance contracts and other services

2014 2013

£m £m

RBS Group 0.3 26

Total 0.3 26
Purchases of services

2014 2013

. £m £m

RBS Group 32 56.4

Fellow subsidiaries 1,006.8 1,180.7

Total ' 1,010.0 1,237.1

Purchases of services also include payments made between companies determined by the level of business generated
and as agreed between the parties on an arm's length basis. Purchase of services also includes profit sharing
arrangements on an arm's length basis.

All employees were employed by DL Insurance Services Limited, a fellow subsidiary company. Total employee costs,
including Directors' remuneration, recharged to the company by DL Insurance Services Limited during the year were
£420.5 million (2013: £544.3 million).

Employee costs recharged by DL Insurance Services Limited include the full costs of key managers and other staff in
respect of share-based payments.

Compensation of key management

2014 2013

. £m £m
Short-term employee benefits ‘ 10.2 9.1
Post-employment benefits 0.3 0.2
Termination benefits 04 0.2
Share-based payments 34 1.9
Total 143 - 114

For the purposes of IAS 24 'Related party disclosures’, key management personnel compnse the Directors and Non-
Executive Directors of DLIG and the members of the Executive Committee.
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34. Related parties

Year end balances arising from cash and investment transactions with members of the RBS Group

2014 2013
£m £m
Cash at bank - 59.6
S.hort-term bank deposits - -
Bank overdrafts - (22.2)
Derivative financial assets - -
Derivative financial liabilities . - (17.0)
Term deposits - 35.0
Total - 55.4
Year end balances arising from sales and purchases of products and services
Receivables from related parties )
2014 2013
£m £m
RBS Group 0.2 0.1
Fellow subsidiaries ' 8.6 0.1
Total 8.8 0.2
Movements in receivables from related parties were as follows:
) 2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January 0.2 0.3
Transactions in the year (103.9) 1.0
Settled in the year . 1125 1.1)
At 31 December 8.8 0.2
Due to related parties
2014 2013
£m £m
RBS Group 25.4 . 56.3
Fellow subsidiaries _ 250.5 2194
Total : 2759 2757
Movements in amounts due to related parties were as follows:
: 2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January 275.7 3128
Transactions in the year 2,5249 2,462.5
Settled in the year . (2,524.7) (2,499.6)
At 31 December ‘ 275.9 276.7

Included in claims reserving are amounts due to other subsidiaries amounting to £5.0 million (2013: £11.6 million).

Loans to related parties

2014 2013
£m £m

Fellow subsidiaries 413.8 340.2
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34. Related parties

Movements in loans to related parties were as follows:

2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January 340.2 282.3

- Loans advanced during the year 71.3 56.3
Interest charged 23 - 16
At 31 December . 413.8 340.2

The Ioan is unsecured and is repayable on 1 January 2017. It is subject to interest on the gross outstanding balance using
the average 3 month LIBOR plus 10 basis points. The borrower may at any time at will, repay any or all outstanding
amounts due and has access to a maximum drawdown facility of £500 million. The terms of the loan provide for an
extension of the repayment date by 1 year on 31 December each year. This requires agreement between both parties.

Subordinated liabilities due to related parties

2014 2013

. £m £m

Fellow subsidiaries 508.5 508.5

Total : 508.5 508.5
Movement in subordinated liabilities due to related parties were as follows

’ 2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January 508.5 508.6

Interest charged 47.5 474

Settled in the year . (47.5) (47.5)

At 31 December ' ' 508.5 508.5
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